
94

observatory buildings, consists of a central structure
40 feet long by 20 feet wide and two smaller struc-
tures. Constructed of nonmagnetic materials, the lab-
oratory is designed to provide space for experiments
requiring a quiet magnetic environment. Office space
and darkroom facilities are provided in the main
building.

All buildings on the site were constructed by Texas
Instruments Incorporated and donated to the Graduate
Research Center. The observatory has been equipped
and staffed by the Coast and Geodetic Survey, and all
its records will be in the public domain, i.e., they will be
available to any scientist or group of scientists of US
citizenship. The laboratory may be used by qualified
organizations whose proposed programs are approved
upon application to the Graduate Research Center.

University of Maryland Radio Observatory
The Department of Physics and Astronomy of the

University of Maryland has taken over the operation
of General Dynamics Corporation's Clark Lake Ob-
servatory, located near Borrego, California. The radio
observatory's main piece of equipment is a specially
designed antenna array, which operates at a wavelength
of 11.4 meters with an aperture of two miles, and thus
allows investigation of a hitherto largely unexplored
spectral region.

The observatory is located in a valley in the South-
ern California desert approximately SO miles north of
the Mexican border and 75 miles inland from the Pa-
cific Ocean on a plot encompassing 2000 acres. Ac-
cording to William C. Erickson, who will direct re-
search programs at Clark Lake, the site is "ideal for
our observations since the 25 by 10 mile valley is
shielded from interference by 5000 foot mountains and
is inhabited only by observatory personnel and one
hermit".

Dr. Erickson, who is now associate professor of as-
tronomy at the University of Maryland, was associated
with General Dynamics from 1957 to 1961 and super-
vised the construction of the Clark Lake facility. A na-
tive of Duluth, he holds degrees in mathematics and
physics from the University of Minnesota. In addition
to his appointments with General Dynamics and with
the University of Maryland, he has taught at other in-
stitutions and was for a time associated with the Bene-

lux Cross Antenna Project at the University of Leiden.
Research plans call for the study of radio-wave scat-

tering by irregularities in the sun's corona, observations
of solar radio emission, and the investigation of the
emission from distant radio sources. Initial work will
be supported by a $75 000 grant to the Department of
Physics and Astronomy from the National Science
Foundation. All of the facilities at the California site
will be purchased from General Dynamics by the uni-
versity.

Pioneer Nuclear Reactor Shut Down
The world's oldest operating nuclear reactor, the

Graphite Reactor at Oak Ridge National Laboratory,
was shut down last month after twenty years of con-
tinuous operation. Advancing technology has provided
more modern means for performing its functions. In
the two decades that it has functioned, the reactor has
operated about 90 percent of the time, with shut-
downs for routine maintenance accounting for the 10
percent time out.

The Graphite Reactor was originally called the Clin-
ton Pile and later was known as the X-10 Pile. Its con-
struction was begun on February 2, 1943, two months
after Enrico Fermi, working at the University of Chi-
cago, had successfully operated the world's first con-
trolled nuclear chain reaction. The Graphite Reactor
went into operation on November 4, 1943, and shortly
thereafter began to fulfill its primary function, the pro-
duction of the first gram quantities of plutonium-239.
After World War II, the reactor became a prime com-
mercial source of radioisotopes. The first commercial
shipment of isotopes left Oak Ridge in August 1946,
and the Graphite Reactor continued to supply them to
domestic and foreign users through the late 195O's.

Seismological Computing Center
The University of Edinburgh has received a grant of

$280 700 from the US National Science Foundation to
assist in establishing a seismological computing center
within the University's Department of Astronomy. The
NSF grant will be supplemented by £10 000 capital and
£6500 recurrent from the British Treasury.

The project was conceived following studies by the
Committee for the International Seismological Sum-
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T Antenna array at the Clark Lake

radio-astronomy facility near Bor-
rego, Calif., which has recently
been acquired from the General
Dynamics Corporation by the Uni-
versity of Maryland.
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